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DESIGN STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION
This Statement has been prepared in support of an Application for Planning Permission and Listed Building Consent for the construction of a new detached garage building at The White House, Church Hill, Harefield, UB9 6DX.
This Statement has been prepared having regard to the advice in Circular 01/2006 in respect of the content of Design Statements, together with the more detailed CABE document ‘Design and Access Statements’.   The specified matters of use, amount, layout, scale, appearance and landscaping are addressed in the Statement.   The Statement also provides an assessment of the proposed development against National and Local Planning Policies and Guidance.
SITE DESCRIPTION AND SURROUNDINGS
The application site is a reasonably sized plot of land to the East side of Church on the outskirts of Harefield village with an approximate total area of 0.13 ha. . The Site is located within The Harefield Village Conservation Area and is was originally occupied by The White Horse Public House, it’s car parking areas to the front and gardens to the rear.
The White House (formerly The White Horse Public House) is a Grade II Listed Building, with the original parts of the building dating from the early 17th Century.  It is believed that the property was originally constructed as a pair of dwelling houses, one of which was converted to an Ale House in 1798.  The whole of the property has been in use as a Public House for at least two hundred years.  Historical pictures of the property show a large detached barn structure to the north side of the Public House and projecting well forward of its frontage, which has since been completely demolished. 
In connection with the previous use of this property as a Public House, the original historic building had been enlarged with relatively modern recent single storey extensions to the north side and rear, providing additional seating area, ladies and gents toilets and kitchens.  The structure of the original building is a mix of masonry and timber framed construction, rendered and painted externally. More recent additions are clad with stained timber boarding.  The whole of the front forecourt and side garden areas to the north had previously been covered with tarmacadam to provide parking for the public house with the rear gardens mainly laid to lawns with seating for customers.
The site is surrounded on all sides by residential developments, with private dwelling houses and garages on  Lovett Road adjoining the North and East boundaries and  Nos 1 & 2 Grove Villas and Colneside adjoining the Southern boundary.  The site has a 40m frontage to Church Hill with two no. vehicular access points.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Planning Permission & Listed Building Consent (Ref; 38029/APP/2010/2743 & 2744 respectively) were granted for the change of use of this property from Public House to Residential on 1 February 2011 and following subsequent Approvals of Details reserved by Condition on 22 October 2012 (Ref; 38029/APP/2012/1891&1892) the property is now in use as a single family dwelling house.  This change has since been implemented and the property has been renamed as The White House.
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Planning Permission and Listed Building Consent ( Ref; 38029/APP/2018/ 2552 & 3426 respectively) were granted for the sub-division of the existing building to provide two separate dwelling houses involving single storey rear extensions together with detached garage buildings and associated internal and external alterations.

An Application to discharge Pre-Commencement Conditions attached to the above Decisions was Approved on 30 September 2019, Ref; 38029/APP/2019/1818.  

The Planning & Listed Building Consents referred to above, granted in 2011 for the change of use of this property to residential included for the complete re-landscaping of the front and side garden areas, the erection of a detached double garage building to the north side of the main dwelling and the construction of a new boundary wall and fencing to the whole frontage. This design incorporated the retention of one of the existing vehicular entrances and closing up the other.
The main building is set well back from the front boundary with Church Hill with a 15m deep forecourt area, which was originally mainly laid to car parking to serve the Public House.  The gardens have since been fully re-landscaped but not in accordance with the approved Planning and Listed Building Consents in that a carriage driveway with both original vehicular entrances retained has been incorporated.
Planning Permission & Listed Building Consents were granted on 13 April 2015 (Ref; 38029/APP/2015/4359 & 4361) for the construction of a new single storey conservatory extension to the rear, involving the removal of the original toilet block extension, the construction of a detached car-port structure to the South side of the main house and the retention of the landscaping to the front of the property incorporating both original vehicular access points.
Planning Permission & Listed Building Consents were granted on 26 November 2018 (Ref; 38029/APP/2018/2552 & 3426) for the construction of a new single storey rear extension involving demolition of toilet block, internal and external alterations and conversion of building to provide two separate dwellings, 1 detached garage and 1 car port with associated landscaping and car parking.
The original building is now in use as two separate dwelling houses as approved with the Southern half of the building renamed as “The White House” and the Northern half renamed as “The Carriage House”.  

DESIGN PROPOSAL
Garage
The current proposal seeks to replace the approved car port structure with a detached garage building in the same location adjacent to the Southern boundary of the site and is of a very similar footprint.  The garage building will be of identical construction to the existing garage in the grounds of The Carriage House, with masonry external walls, largely clad with black barn timber boarding and covered with a gabled pitched roof finished with plain clay tiles.
The proposed building is set into the existing ground by 1.0m to take account of the fact that the ground in this part of the site is largely made up and the fact that both of the adjoining buildings at Grove Villas and Colneside  are set at a much lower level to the existing ground within the White House garden which rises up from the access driveway to the front.  This will involve reducing the level of the gravel parking area immediately in front of the proposed building.
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With the reduced floor level, the visual impact of the new building will be kept to a minimum in relation to both the existing main White House building and also the adjoining properties and will enable the proposed garage to sit comfortably in this lower part of the site, reflecting the change to building levels in line with Church Hill itself. 
Landscaping
Externally, the car parking and turning area in front of the proposed garage building will marry in with the existing, with a low level retaining wall provided immediately in front of the building itself.  The existing double gates leading through to the existing court yard garden will be replaced with a feature brick and wall and a timber pedestrian gate to infill the gap between the new garage and the main dwelling. The court yard area will be fully relandscaped with stone paving and low level planting, providing a private and secluded seating area.

ACCESS AND ACCESSIBILITY
The existing vehicular access serving The White House is to be retained and the car parking and turning area within the site extended up to the front of the proposed garage and will be finished with a gravel surface to match the existing.
The mix of hard and soft landscaping proposed will provide clearly defined routes for all pedestrian and vehicle movements both onto the site and around the perimeter of the building to entrances/exits etc.
Low energy lighting will be provided to the external circulation areas around the proposed garage building and access drive.   Lighting will be designed to carefully integrate with the existing street lighting and to protect the amenity of the adjoining dwellings.
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